# TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE TOWN BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 5, 2020

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in-person attendance was limited and participants were able to join using gotomeeting.com.

- I. ADMINISTRATIVE
  - A. Notice of the meeting was properly posted at the Town Hall and on the Town's web site. Town Chair Kris Hampton, Supervisors Mike Fonger, Steve Anders, Kristi Williams and Mike DuPlayee were present, as well as Clerk Kim Banigan, Treasurer Deb Abel, Highway Superintendent Dan Dresen, and Town Engineer Nick Bubolz. Attorneys Connie Anderson and William Cole were present virtually through item II. A. Fire Chief Nick Archibald was present virtually through item II. H.
  - B. Hampton called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.
  - C. Minutes of previous meeting(s): **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to approve the minutes from the September 21, 2020 Town Board Meeting open and closed sessions, correcting the motion to reconvene to opens session to having a roll call vote on both and keeping the closed session minutes closed. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0**.
  - D. Finance Report and Approval of Bills:
    - 1) **MOTION** by DuPlayee/Fonger to approve payment of bills corresponding to checks #34138-34171, with #34158 voided. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0**.
    - 2) **MOTION** by Anders/DuPlayee to approve payment of September per diems as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
    - 3) The Treasurer reported that her submission of \$18,559 to the Routes to Recovery grant was successful.
  - E. Public Concerns: None.
  - F. Road Right of Way Permits: None.
- II. BUSINESS:
  - A. Discuss/Consider appeal to stop work order for the Kennedy Hills subdivision: The stop work order was issued as required by the Kennedy Hills Developers agreement when the developer failed to obtain approval of a full set of final constructions plans for the Kennedy Road intersection improvements from Dane County Highways on or before noon on October 1, 2020. Developer David Riesop described the progress that has been made but asked for consideration because the project has grown in scope. Atty. Anderson added information regarding the timeline, noting that the agreement approved on July 6<sup>th</sup> included the October 1<sup>st</sup> deadline, which was a 30-day extension from what was originally proposed in the agreement. The developer's engineer first provided information to the County on August 29<sup>th</sup>, to which the County responded in 2 days. She also suggested that the Town should look at the letter of credit for the intersection to be sure it covered the larger scope of the project. Atty. Anderson then asked if the Town Board felt it was an appropriate time to turn the legal aspect of the development over to Town Attorney William Cole. There was general agreement with this plan. Atty. Cole concurred with Atty. Anderson, and said it is incumbent on the developer to make a case for an extension, but he did not see a delay that was out of the hands of the developer. **MOTION** by Anders/DuPlayee to uphold the stop work order until the developer meets the conditions of the developer's agreement, and directing the Town Engineer to provide advice as to whether the letter of credit should be increased. MOTION CARRIED 4-1 (Fonger opposed). Mr. Riesop then asked for clarification of what work was allowed under the stop work order, stating that there is some erosion control work that should be done for

adequate protection. **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee authorizing the Town Chair, with consultation with the Town Engineer, to allow necessary erosion control work while the general stop work order is in effect. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.** 

- B. Plan Commission Recommendations:
  - 1) Discuss/Consider application by Donald Viney/Viney Acres LLC to rezone 3 acres west of 2100 Nora Road (parcels #0711-274-8001-0 and #0711-271-9500-3) from FP-35 to RR-2 to create a new residential lot: Don and Marilyn Viney were present. Fonger questioned why Anders opposed this at the Plan Commission level. Anders said he was generally opposed to exceeding the 2-acre maximum lot size, but has since driven by the property and now understands the issue. MOTION by DuPlayee/Williams to accept the Plan Commission's recommendation to approve the rezone of 3.0015 acres to RR-2, allowing exceedance of the 2.0 acre maximum due to the proximity to the gas line and its limitations on placement of improvements. MOTION CARRIED 5-0.
- C. Monona Grove School District Staff presentation about the District's operational referendum on the November 3<sup>rd</sup>: Superintendent Daniel Olson, Director of Busines Services Jerrud Rossing, Director of Communications Katy Byrnes Kaiser and School Board member Susan Manning were all present virtually. Olson said the 5-year, \$2.6 million operating referendum approved in 2016 will expire after this year, and the \$3.7 million November 3<sup>rd</sup> referendum looks to renew it to maintain spending. He said the increase is due to 1) inflation, 2) the need to be competitive with salaries and benefits in order to maintain and attract quality staff, and 3) the possibility of reduced State revenues due to COVID-19. He estimated the impact at \$40 per \$100,000 of fair market value. If the referendum does not pass, he said there would need to be significant reductions in staff and programming, although there would be another opportunity for a referendum in April of 2021. Board members argued that none of the 3 needs stated had been demonstrated, and with so many people struggling right now, it is not right to be asking more of them. Fonger asked how much debt the district already has. Rossing said it currently has \$116 million in debt, which will be down to \$109 million by the end of the school year. Williams asked the school district representatives to state how they are positively impacting the education of students. Byrnes Kaiser said she works to keep families and the community informed about what is going on. The others did not answer the question.
- D. Discuss/Consider 2021 membership in the Cottage Grove Chamber of Commerce: DuPlayee noted that membership has dropped. A letter from the Chamber stating that membership is down due to COVID and asking members to consider rounding up the 2021 renewal fee as a showing of support. **MOTION** by Fonger/Williams to approve 2021 membership at the normal cost, without rounding up. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- E. Discuss/Consider approval of Agreement with Strand Associates for 2021 services for the Natvig Road Landfill: Williams questioned why the fee is so much higher. Anders said there is additional work to monitor the new gas probe that was recently installed. **MOTION** by Anders/Williams to approve the agreement as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- F. Discuss/Consider adoption of Resolution 2020-10-05 Authorizing the borrowing of \$156,356; providing for the issuance and sale of a general obligation promissory note therefor; and levying a tax in connection therewith: **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to adopt the resolution as presented. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0**.

# TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE TOWN BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 5, 2020

- G. Discuss/Consider approval of Town's portion of cost to repair CGFD Engine 3: There was a quote from Reliant Fire Apparatus that the Jt. Fire Department Committee had reviewed, and another from Rennert's that came in after the Jt. Fire Department Committee meeting at a considerably lower cost. Fire Chief Nick Archibald said they have used Rennert's in the past and are comfortable with them doing the work. **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to approve the quote from Rennert's for \$9,724.41, with the Town's share at \$3,555.32. Repairs to be made in 2020 using unassigned funds. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- H. Discuss/Consider approval of Town's portion of cost to repair the roof of the Emergency Services Building: Quotes were received from NIR Roof Care (\$4,110.00) and Great Lakes Roofing (\$6,250.00). Half of the cost would be the Town's. The Joint Fire Department Committee recommended Great Lakes Roofing since the NIR Roof Care quote wanted an annual maintenance fee. MOTION by Anders/DuPlayee to accept the quote from Great Lakes Roofing, with the Town's portion coming from unassigned funds. MOTION CARRIED 5-0.
- I. Discuss/Consider hourly wage rate for the Board of Absentee Canvassers: The Clerk said that accepting an appointment to the Board of Absentee Canvassers takes on a big responsibility and commitment, and asked that Board members be paid the same hourly wage rate as Chief Election Inspectors (\$12.00/hour). **MOTION** by Fonger/Williams to approve an hour wage of \$12.00 for members of the Board of Absentee Canvassers. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- J. Discuss/Consider whether to replace stolen trail camera: The Clerk said a replacement would run about \$400. **MOTION** by Williams/DuPlayee to replace the stolen trail camera using unassigned funds, and pursue reimbursement from insurance. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.**
- III. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY UPDATE: Dresen said they are about half done with mowing ditches, and they installed the new ballot drop box this morning.
- IV. CLERK'S OFFICE UPDATE: The Clerk reported that almost 50% of registered voters have requested absentee ballots, and almost 50% of those have already returned ballots. A lot of people are stepping up as poll workers, including some Village residents, and she is working on plans to train them.
- V. BOARD REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: None.
- VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
  - A. Town Parks Committee: The committee recommended a budget of \$9,800 for 2021. An Eagle Scout has express interest in repairing park signs and other things. Hampton asked Dresen if he would accept a donation of hostas to plant around trees, but Dresen said they would be more trouble than they would be worth. Williams said that the new playground equipment at the Capitol View Park has changed the neighborhood, and there are always kids playing at the park.
  - B. Joint Town/Village Fire Department Committee: A meeting is scheduled on October 12<sup>th</sup> to consider sign proposals.
  - C. Joint Town/Village Landfill Monitoring Committee: The DNR is requiring installation of more passive venting due to the detection of methane. Tina Sebold from Strand Associates is putting a plan together for bids.
- VII. Adjournment: **MOTION** by DuPlayee/Williams to adjourn. **MOTION CARRIED 5-0.** The meeting ended at 8:38 P.M.

Kim Banigan, Clerk

Approved 10-19-2020

#### RESOLUTION

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 2020-10-05**

#### RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BORROWING OF \$156,356.00; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE THEREFOR; AND LEVYING A TAX IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Town Board (the "Governing Body") hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, desirable and in the best interest of the Town of Cottage Grove, Dane County(ies), Wisconsin (the "Issuer") to raise funds for the purpose of:

#### To Purchase patrol vehicle.

(the "Borrowing Purpose"); and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that the Borrowing Purpose is within the Issuer's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in Section 67.04(1)(b)of the Wisconsin Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12) of the Wisconsin Statutes to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Issuer that:

Section 1. Authorization of the Note. For the purpose of paying the cost of the Borrowing Purpose, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of \$156,356.00 from Monona Bank (the "Lender") in accordance with the terms set forth herein.

Section 2. Issuance of the Note. To evidence such indebtedness, the Chairperson and the Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to make, execute, issue and deliver to the Lender for, on behalf of and in the name of the Issuer, a general obligation promissory note aggregating the principal amount of \$156,356.00 (the "Note").

Section 3. Terms of the Note. The Note shall be designated "General Obligation Promissory Note"; shall be dated the date of its issuance; shall bear interest at the rate of 1.990% per annum; and shall be payable as follows:

Borrower will pay this loan in accordance with the following payment schedule: 4 annual consecutive principal and interest payments of \$32,799.87 each, beginning March 15, 2021, with interest calculated on the unpaid principal balances at an interest rate of 1.990% per annum; and one principal and interest payment of \$32,798.14 on March 14, 2025, with interest calculated on the unpaid principal balances at an interest rate of 1.990% per annum; and one principal and interest payment of \$32,798.14 on March 14, 2025, with interest calculated on the unpaid principal balances at an interest rate of 1.990% per annum. This estimated final payment is based on the assumption that all payments will be made exactly as scheduled; the actual final payment will be for all principal and accrued interest not yet paid, together with any other unpaid amounts under this Resolution Authorizing Borrowing.

Interest on this Note is computed on a 365/365 simple interest basis; that is, by applying the ratio of the interest rate over the number of days in a year, multiplied by the outstanding principal balance, multiplied by the actual number of days the principal balance is outstanding. All interest payable under this Note is computed using this method.

Section 4. Prepayment Provisions. The Note shall have prepayment privileges on any principal or interest payment date on or after 10-06-2020.

Section 5. Form of the Note. The Note shall be issued in registered form and shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 6. Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Note as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged, and a direct annual irrepealable tax is hereby levied upon all taxable property of the Issuer. Said direct annual irrepealable tax shall be levied in the years and amounts as follows:

Levy Year	Amount
2020	\$31,435.93
2021	\$30,313.96
2022	\$30,917.21
2023	\$31,528.99
2024	\$32,159.91

The aforesaid direct annual irrepealable tax hereby levied shall be collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes of the Issuer levied in said years are collected. So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the Note remains unpaid, the tax herein above levied shall be and continues irrepealable except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus in the Debt Service Fund Account created herein. If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on the Note when due, the requisite amount shall be paid from other funds of the Issuer then available, which sums shall be replaced upon the collection of the tax rolls for the preparents made and the amount of direct annual tax hereinabove levied shall be reduced accordingly for the year or years with respect to which said note was prepaid.

Section 7. Debt Service Fund Account. There is hereby established in the Issuer's treasury a fund account separate and distinct from every other Issuer fund or account designated "Debt Service Fund Account for \$156,356.00 General Obligation Promissory Note." Such fund shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. There shall be deposited in said fund account any premium plus accrued interest paid on the Note at the time of delivery to the Lender, all money or funds raised by taxation pursuant to Section 6 hereof and all other sums as may be necessary to pay interest on the Note when the same shall become due and to retire the principal installments on the Note. Said fund account shall be used for the sole purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Note and shall be maintained for such any purpose until such indebtedness is fully paid or otherwise extinguished. Sinking funds established for obligations previously issued by the Issuer may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the Debt Service Fund Account.

Section 8. Segregated Borrowed Money Fund. The proceeds of the Note (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be paid at the time of the delivery of the Note into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) shall be deposited into an account separate and distinct from all other funds and be disbursed solely for the purposes for which borrowed or for the payment for the principal of and the interest on the Note.

Section 9. Arbitrage Covenant. The Issuer shall not take any action with respect to the Note Proceeds which, if such action had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and intentionally taken on the date of the delivery of and payment for the Note (the "Closing"), would cause the Note to be an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any income tax regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Regulations").

The Note Proceeds may be temporarily invested in legal investments until needed, provided however, that the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that so long as the Note remains outstanding, moneys on deposit in any fund or account created or maintained in connection with the Note, whether such moneys were derived from the Note Proceeds or from any other source, will not be used or invested in a manner which would cause the Note to be an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of the Code or Regulations.

Page 2

The Clerk, or other officer of the Issuer charged with responsibility for issuing the Note, shall provide appropriate certifications of the Issuer, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the Issuer regarding the amount and use of the Note Proceeds and the facts and estimates on which such expectations are based, all as of the Closing.

Section 10. Additional Tax Covenants: Exemption from Rebate: Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation Status. The Issuer hereby further covenants and agrees that it will take all necessary steps and perform all obligations required by the Code and Regulations (whether prior to or subsequent to the issuance of the Note) to assure that the Note is an obligation described in Section 103(a) of the Code, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, throughout its term. The Clerk or other officer of the Issuer charged with the responsibility of issuing the Note, shall provide appropriate certifications of the Issuer as of the Closing, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, certifying that it can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code and Regulations.

Further, it is the intent of the Issuer to take all reasonable and lawful actions to comply with any new tax laws enacted so that the Note will continue to be an obligation described in Section 103(a) of the Code, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

For Note Proceeds allocable to a Borrowing Purpose for new projects or acquisitions, the Issuer reasonably expects to:

- qualify for the small issuer rebate exception because it (including any entities subordinate to the Issuer) will issue no more than \$5,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (including the Note(s)) during the current calendar year.
- gualify for the eighteen month rebate exception under Section 1.148-7(d) of the Regulations.
- qualify for the two-year rebate exception under Section 148(f)(4) of the Code.
- X not qualify for an exception to rebate.

The Issuer hereby designates the Note to be a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code and in support of such designation, the Clerk or other officer of the Issuer charged with the responsibility for issuing the Note, shall provide appropriate certifications of the Issuer, all as of the Closing.

Section 11. Execution of the Note. The Note shall be prepared in typewritten form, executed on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and Clerk, sealed with its official or corporate seal thereof, if any, and delivered to the Lender upon payment to the Issuer of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery; provided that, if this is a refinancing, the refunding Note shall be immediately exchanged for the note being refinanced. In the event that either of the officers whose signatures appear on the Note shall be issuer to be such officers before the delivery of the Note, such signatures shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they had remained in office until such delivery. The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized to do all acts and execute all documents as may be necessary and convenient for effectuating the Closing.

Section 12. Payment of the Note. The principal of and interest on the Note shall be paid by the Clerk or Treasurer in lawful money of the United States.

Section 13. Registration and Transfer of Note. The Clerk shall keep records for the registration and for the transfer of the Note. The person in whose name the Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of either principal or interest on the Note shall be made only to the registered owner thereof. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. The Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof or the Note shall be determined to the clerk, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the registered owner or his legal representative duly authorized in writing. Upon such presentation, the Note shall be transferred by appropriate entry in the registration records and a similar notation, including date of registration, name of new registered owner and signature of the Clerk, shall be made on such Note.

Section 14. Conflicting Resolutions: Severability: Effective Date. All prior resolutions, rules or other actions of the Issuer or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict. In the event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof. The foregoing shall take effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law.

Section 15. Einancial Reports. Officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed, so long as the Note is outstanding, to deliver to Lender any audit statement or other financial information Lender may reasonably request and to discuss its affairs and finances with Lender. Adopted and recorded this 5th day of October, 2020.

(Seal)

ATTEST:

LaserPro, Ver. 20.2.0.043 Copr. Finastra USA Corporation 1997, 2020. All Rights Reserved. + WI C:LASERPRO/CFILPLWUN030.FC TR-9027

# **ISSUER'S CERTIFICATE**

The undersigned is the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Town of Cottage Grove, Dane County(ies), Wisconsin (the "Issuer") who hereby certifies to Monona Bank ("Lender") that:

#### I. ISSUER ORGANIZATION AND OFFICERS

1. At all times mentioned herein, the Issuer was duly organized, validly existing and operating as a town administered by a governing body composed of five (5) members (the "Governing Body"), who are listed below and were duly qualified and acting as such at all times mentioned in this Certificate:

Kris Hampton, Mike Fonger, Steve Anders, Kristi Williams and Mike DuPlayee

2. The following named individuals whose authentic signatures are hereto subscribed, are the duly elected/appointed, qualified and acting officers of the Issuer presently holding the offices set forth opposite their respective names below:

Name	Office	Manual Signature
Kris Hampton	Chairperson	Kino Hangton
Debra R. Abel	Treasurer	
Kim M. Banigan	Clerk	KK

#### II. AUTHORIZATION OF THE NOTE; OPEN MEETING LAW COMPLIANCE

3. At a lawful, duly-convened open meeting of the Governing Body held at 4058 CTH N, Cottage Grove, WI 53527, Wisconsin at 7:00PM, on the 21st Day of September, 2020, at which Kris Hampton, Mike Fonger, Steve Anders, Krisi Williams, Mike DuPlayee of the members-elect of the Governing Body were present in person, a resolution authorizing the Issuer to borrow the sum of not to exceed \$156,356.00 and issue its General Obligation Promissory Note (the "Note") therefor pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wis. Stats., (the "Resolution"), was, on motion duly made and seconded, adopted and recorded by the affirmative vote of 5 of the members of the Governing Body. Said meeting of the Governing Body was duly called, noticed, held and conducted in the manner established by the Governing Body and required by pertinent Wisconsin Statutes.

4. The Resolution was on the agenda for said meeting and public notice thereof was given not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the commencement of said meeting by (i) posting notice of the meeting; (ii) providing notice to those news media which have filed a written request for notice of meetings; (iii) providing notice to the official newspaper of the Issuer; and (iv) complying with special meeting requirements if said meeting was a special meeting.

5. The Resolution has been duly recorded in the minutes of said meeting, has not been amended or revoked, and, in all other respects, is in full force and effect on the date hereof and there is no proceeding of the Governing Body or Issuer electors in conflict with or in any way altering the effect of the Resolution. A true and correct copy of said Resolution is attached hereto as a part of the transcript of proceedings.

#### III. DEBT LIMIT COMPLIANCE

6. The full value of all taxable property located within the Issuer's boundaries, as last equalized for State purposes by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, is \$499,405,700.00. The Department of Revenue Certificate of Equalized Value is attached hereto as a part of the transcript of proceedings.

7. The total outstanding general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer, howsoever incurred, including this Note, aggregates not more than \$1,009,752.66, determined as follows:

<u>Amount</u>	Description of Debt
\$156,356.00	Principal/Issue Amount
\$297,293.00	Principal/Issue Amount dated 08/04/2020
\$556,103.66	Principal Amount of Note- McFarland State Bank

#### IV. DELIVERY; RECEIPT; RECORD BOOK

8. I have delivered the Note to the Lender in the principal amount set forth in and duly authorized by the Resolution.

9. I have received the full principal amount of the Note issued to the Lender.

10. The Lender has complied in all respects with its agreement to lend money on the Note.

11. I have provided and kept and will keep a separate record book in which I have recorded a full and correct statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of issuing the Note referred to herein. The Treasurer is prepared to keep a record of the Note receipted and returned to him or her.

#### V. NO LITIGATION

12. There is no legislation, reorganization, proceedings or order, controversy or litigation pending or threatened in any manner questioning or affecting the corporate existence of the Issuer; its boundaries; the right or title of any of its officers to his or her respective office; or the due authorization or validity of the Note referred to herein, the Resolution or any of the taxes heretofore levied by the Issuer.

#### VI. FACTS AND REASONABLE EXPECTATIONS RELATING TO ARBITRAGE REQUIREMENTS

13. The certifications made in this Section VI of this Certificate are being made pursuant to Section 1.148-1 through 1.148-11 of the Income Tax Regulations and the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Regulations" and "Code," respectively).

14. The Issuer is a governmental unit with general taxing powers.

15. All of the proceeds of the Note (the "Note Proceeds") shall be used for governmental purposes of the Issuer. None of the Note Proceeds will be used (directly or indirectly) in a trade or business carried on by any person (other than a governmental unit), and none of the payments on the Note are (directly or indirectly): (a) secured by any interest in property used or to be used for a trade or business or payments in respect of such property; or (b) derived from payments (whether or not to the Issuer) in respect of property or borrowed money, used or to be used for a trade or business.

16. None of the Note Proceeds will be used (directly or indirectly) to make or finance loans to persons other than government units.

17. The estimated total cost of the Borrowing Purpose is \$156,356.00. "Borrowing Purpose" has the meaning given in the attached Resolution.

18. The Note Proceeds and earnings on temporary investment thereof will not exceed the amount necessary for the Borrowing Purpose by more than the lesser of \$100,000 or Five Percent (5%) of the Note Proceeds.

19. If the Borrowing Purpose includes funding new projects or acquisitions:

a) The Note Proceeds and any money received from the investment or reinvestment of Note Proceeds, and from investment of money derived from such investments, will be expended on the costs of the Borrowing Purpose within three (3) years from the date of this Certificate.

b) The Issuer has heretofore entered into some substantial binding obligations for the Borrowing Purpose and will, within six (6) months of the date of this Certificate, enter into additional substantial binding obligations requiring payment by the Issuer of not less than Five Percent (5%) of the Note Proceeds.

c) Work on some elements of the Borrowing Purpose has begun. Work on all elements of the Borrowing Purpose will proceed with due diligence to completion.

d) The Issuer reasonably expects to:

qualify for the small issuer rebate exception because it (including any entities subordinate to the Issuer) will issue no more than \$5,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (including the Note) during the current calendar year.

qualify for the eighteen month rebate exception under Section 1.148-7(d) of the Regulations.

qualify for the two-year rebate exception under Section 148(f)(4) of the Code.

X not qualify for an exception to rebate.

20. If the Borrowing Purpose includes refunding outstanding obligations of the Issuer:

a) The obligations being refunded will be discharged within 30 days of the date hereof.

b) There are no remaining original or investment proceeds of the obligations being refunded, so that there are no "transferred proceeds" with respect to the Note.

c) All of the Note Proceeds will be expended within six months of the date hereof.

d) The Issuer expected on the date the obligations being refunded were issued that at least 85% of the spendable proceeds of the refunded obligations would be used to carry out the governmental purposes of those obligations within a three year period beginning on such date, and not more than 50% of

the proceeds of the refunded obligations were invested in investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for four years or more.

21. None of the Note Proceeds will be invested in a reserve or replacement fund.

22. There are no other obligations of the Issuer which (a) were sold at substantially the same time as the Note; (b) were sold pursuant to a common plan of financing together with the Note; and (c) will be paid out of substantially the same source of funds as the Note.

23. None of the Note Proceeds are being invested in investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for a period of four years or more.

24. The issuance of the Note is not a transaction or part of a series of transactions which the Issuer has employed that attempts to circumvent the Regulations or Code for the purpose of enabling the Issuer to exploit the difference between tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to gain a material financial advantage and which increases the burden on the market for tax-exempt obligations.

#### VII. BONA FIDE DEBT SERVICE FUND ACCOUNT

25. The Issuer has created a segregated debt service fund account pursuant to Section 7 of the Resolution (the "Debt Service Fund Account").

26. The Debt Service Fund Account shall be used primarily to achieve proper matching of revenues and debt service within each note year. Amounts deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account will be depleted at least once a year except for a reasonable carryover amount which will not exceed the greater of (a) one year's earnings on such funds, or (b) one-twelfth of the annual debt service on the Note.

27. The Issuer does not anticipate that the earnings on amounts in the Debt Service Fund Account will ever exceed \$100,000 in any note year.

28. Other than the Debt Service Fund Account, the Issuer has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking or other similar account which is reasonably expected to be used to pay debt service on the Note or which is pledged as collateral for the Note or to replace funds that will be used to pay debt service on the Note.

#### VIII. QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

29. The Note constitutes a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" as that term is defined in the Code in that:

a) as described in Paragraphs 15 and 16 of this Certificate, the Note is not a "private activity bond" as defined in the Code;

b) the Issuer has designated the Note as a "gualified tax-exempt obligation";

c) The Note, together with any other obligations heretofore designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" during the current calendar year, aggregate less than \$10,000,000; and

d) The Issuer does not reasonably expect to issue more than \$10,000,000 of obligations which are designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" during the current calendar year.

#### IX. MISCELLANEOUS

30. The payment of principal or interest with respect to the Note will not be guaranteed, either directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof. None of the Note Proceeds will be (i) used in making loans the payment of principal or interest with respect to which are to be guaranteed, in whole or in part, by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or (ii) invested directly or indirectly in federally insured deposits or accounts, except for proceeds invested during permitted temporary periods or in the debt service fund for the Note or as otherwise permitted under Section 149(b)(3) of the Code.

31. With respect to a Borrowing Purpose that includes funding for new projects or acquisitions, any expenditures already paid by the Issuer for which the Issuer is to be reimbursed with Note Proceeds (a) were paid no more than 60 days before the date on which the Issuer adopted the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Note or stating its intention to reimburse itself from the Note Proceeds for any expenditures relating to said new projects or acquisitions which it paid from other funds prior to receipt of the Note Proceeds, or (b) are preliminary expenditures relating to said new projects or acquisitions (such as architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing and similar costs but not including land acquisition, site preparation and similar costs incident to the commencement of construction) which are in an amount which is less than 20% of the issue price of the Note.

The undersigned hereby certifies that the above-stated facts are true and correct and the above-stated expectations of the Issuer are reasonable, and there are no other facts, estimates or circumstances that would materially change the foregoing conclusions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate in my official capacity effective as of the original date of issue of the Note.

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Kim M. Banigan, Clerk

Approved as correct: / By: Ins Hampi Kris Hampton, Chairperson 

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Debra R. Abel, Treasurer P

**GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE** 

### UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF WISCONSIN TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE

#### original date of issue:

#### 10-06-2020

REGISTERED OWNER: Monona Bank

# PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-SIX THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FIFTY-SIX & 00/100 DOLLARS (\$156,356.00)

Section 1. Payment Schedule. KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the Town of Cottage Grove, Dane County(ies), Wisconsin (the "Issuer"), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the registered owner identified above, or to registered assigns, (the "Lender") the principal amount identified above, payable with interest at the rate of 1.990% per annum as follows:

Borrower will pay this loan in accordance with the following payment schedule: 4 annual consecutive principal and interest payments of \$32,799.87 each, beginning March 15, 2021, with interest calculated on the unpaid principal balances at an interest rate of 1.990% per annum; and one principal and interest payment of \$32,798.14 on March 14, 2025, with interest calculated on the unpaid principal balances at an interest rate of 1.990% per annum. This estimated final payment is based on the assumption that all payments will be made exactly as scheduled; the actual final payment will be for all principal and accrued interest not yet paid, together with any other unpaid amounts under this Note.

Both the principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the Lender in lawful money of the United States at the office of the Lender. Payment of the last installment of principal of this Note shall be made upon presentation and surrender hereof to the Issuer's Clerk or Treasurer.

Interest on this Note is computed on a 365/365 simple interest basis; that is, by applying the ratio of the interest rate over the number of days in a year, multiplied by the outstanding principal balance, multiplied by the actual number of days the principal balance is outstanding. All interest payable under this Note is computed using this method.

Section 2. Other Charges. If any payment (other than the final payment) is not made on or before the 10th day after its due date, Lender may collect a **delinquency charge of 5.000%** of the unpaid amount. Unpaid principal and interest bear interest after maturity until paid (whether by acceleration or lapse of time) at the rate of 18.000% per year, computed on the basis of a 365 day year. Issuer agrees to pay a charge of \$15.00 for each check presented for payment under this Note which is returned unsatisfied.

Section 3. Security. For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged.

Section 4. Purpose and Authorization. This Note is issued pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, for the purpose of paying the cost of the "Borrowing Purpose" as defined and authorized by a resolution of the Issuer's Town Board (the "Governing Body") duly adopted at a meeting held on 09-21-2020. Said resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Governing Body for said date.

Section 5. Prepayment. This Note is subject to redemption prior to maturity on any principal or interest payment date on or after 10-06-2020, at the unpaid principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. All prepayments, if applicable, shall be applied first upon the unpaid interest and then applied upon the unpaid principal in inverse order of maturity.

Section 6. <u>Transferability</u>. This Note is transferable by a written assignment, in a form satisfactory to the Issuer's Clerk, duly executed by the registered owner hereof or by such owner's duly authorized legal representative. Upon such transfer a new registered Note may be issued to the transferee in exchange hereof if requested by said transferee. The Issuer may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the Issuer shall not be affected by notice to the contrary.

Section 7. Certifications. It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the Issuer, including this Note, does not exceed any limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, when and as payable. It is hereby further certified that the Issuer has designated this Note to be a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 8. Default. Upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events of default, then the unpaid balance shall, at the option of Lender, without notice, mature and become immediately payable: (a) Issuer fails to pay any amount when due under this Note or under any other instrument evidencing any indebtedness of Issuer to Lender; (b) any representation or warranty made under this Note or information provided by Issuer to Lender in connection with this Note is or was false or fraudulent in any material respect; (c) a material adverse change occurs in Issuer's financial condition; (d) Issuer fails to timely observe or perform any of the covenants or duties in this Note; (e) an event of default occurs under any agreement securing this Note; or (f) Lender deems itself insecure. The unpaid balance shall automatically mature and become immediately payable in the event Issuer becomes the subject of bankruptcy or other insolvency proceedings. Lender's receipt of any payment on this Note after the occurrence of an event of default shall not constitute a waiver of the default of the Lender's rights and remedies upon such default.

Section 9, Issuer Obligations, Issuer agrees to pay all costs of collection before and after judgment, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees (including those incurred in successful defense or settlement of any counterclaim brought by Issuer or incident to any action or proceeding involving Issuer brought pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code) and waive presentment, protest, demand and notice of dishonor. Subject to Wis. Stat. § 893.80, Issuer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Lender, its directors, officers and agents, from and under this Note or the activities of Issuer. This indemnity shall survive payment of this Note. Issuer acknowledges that Lender has not made any representation or warranties with respect to, and the Lender does not assume any responsibility to Issuer for, the collectability or enforceability

of this Note or the financial condition of Issuer. Issuer has independently determined the collectability and enforceability of this Note. Issuer authorizes Lender to disclose financial and other information about Issuer to others.

Section 10. Waiver. No failure on the part of Lender to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy under this Note shall operate as a waiver of such right, power or remedy; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right under this Note preclude any other or further exercise of the right or the exercise of any other right.

Section 11. Rights of Lender. The remedies provided in this Note are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies provided by law. Without affecting the liability of Issuer, Lender may, without notice, accept partial payments, release or impair any collateral security for the payment of this Note or agree not to sue any party liable on it. Without affecting the liability of Issuer, Lender may from time to time, without notice, renew or extend the time for repayment subject to the time limits prescribed in Wis. Stat. § 67.12(12).

Section 12, Venue: Interpretation. Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the venue for any legal proceeding relating to collection of this Note shall be, at Lender's option: (a) the county in which Lender has its principal office in this state; (b) the county in which Issuer is located; (c) or the county in which this Note was executed by Issuer. This Note is intended by Issuer and Purchase as the final expression of this Note and as a complete and exclusive statement of its terms, there being no conditions to the enforceability of this Note. This Note may not be supplemented or modified except in writing. This Note benefits Lender, its successors and assigns and binds Issuer and its successors and assigns. The validity, construction and enforcement of this Note are governed by the internal laws of Wisconsin. Invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Note.

ERRORS & OMISSIONS. The undersigned Issuer for and in consideration of the above-referenced Lender funding the closing of this loan agrees, if requested by Lender or Closing Agent for Lender, to fully cooperate and adjust for clerical errors, any or all loan closing documentation if deemed necessary or desirable in the reasonable discretion of Lender to enable Lender to sell, convey, seek guaranty or market said loan to any entity, including but not limited to an investor.

In the event any of the documents evidencing and/or securing the above referenced loan misstate or inaccurately reflect the true and correct terms and provisions of the loan and said misstatement or inaccuracy is due to unilateral mistake on the part of the Lender, mutual mistake on the part of the Lender and Issuer or clerical error, then in such event Issuer shall upon request of Lender and in order to correct such misstatement of inaccuracy, execute such new documents or initial such corrected original documents as Lender may deem necessary to remedy said inaccuracy or mistake and Issuer's failure to initial or execute such documents as requested shall constitute a default under the note evidencing the deed of trust/mortgage or security agreement securing the loan. Issuer agrees to assume all costs including by way of illustration and not limitation, actual expenses, legal fees and marketing losses for failing to reasonably comply with Lender's requests within thirty (30) days.

In the event any of the documents anticipated to be executed at closing, whether pursuant to the Commitment Letter, or required by Lender's counsel, is not executed at the time of closing, Issuer shall execute or cause the same to be executed when said documents are provided. If any of the documents contain misstatements or inaccuracies, the foregoing paragraph shall apply.

#### FINANCIAL COVENANTS & RATIOS. Issuer shall furnish to Lender the following:

Annual Statements. As soon as available, but in no event later than one-hundred-twenty (120) days after the end of each fiscal year, a balance sheet and income statement for the year ended, audited and prepared by Issuer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer, by its Governing Body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the signatures of its duly qualified Chairperson and Clerk or persons authorized by law to sign on their behalf, and to be sealed with its official or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue identified above.

TOWN OF COTTAGE GROVE, WISCONSIN:

(Seal)

#### REGISTRATION

This Note shall be registered in registration records kept by the Clerk of the Issuer, such registration to be noted in the registration blank below and upon said registration records, and this Note may thereafter be transferred only in accordance with the terms of this Note, such transfer to be made on such records and endorsed hereon.

Date of Registration	Name of Lender	Signature of Clerk

# **INVESTMENT REPRESENTATION**

The undersigned duly authorized officer of Monona Bank ("Lender") located in Monona, Wisconsin, hereby certifies with respect to the purchase of that certain \$156,356.00 Promissory Note dated October 6, 2020, issued by the Town of Cottage Grove, Dane County(ies), Wisconsin, that the Lender is purchasing said note for investment purposes and will not resell said note, except to another depository institution or depository institutions which will also make this certification. This Investment Representation is dated October 6, 2020.

LENDER:

MONONA BANK

By:

Laura J. Peterson, Senior Vice President

LaserPro, Ver. 20.2.0.043 Copr. Finastra USA Corporation 1997, 2020. All Rights Reserved. • WI C:LASERPROICFILPLVIUN050 FC TR-9027

Monona Bank		Monor	na Bank
-------------	--	-------	---------

# Business Online Banking Maintenance Send to BSSupport@mononabank.com

Date 10/06/2020		Submitted	By Ann M	allow	Ext.	2309	Branch	BR	
			CON	IPANY II	NFORMAT	ION			
Company Name Town of Cottage Grove									
Customer (CIS) #	3:	2240			,	······			
Tax ID Number	3	39-6005842							
		CUF	RENT IN	FORMATIC	DN		CHA	ANGE TO	
Company Phone Num	nber 6	608-839-5021							
Company eMail Add	ress tr	treasurer@towncg.net							
Address	4	058 County Rd	N Cottage	Grove WI 53	527-9503				
Profile Type		Business				Select			
Main Billing Accoun	t# 1:	29510							
				DELETE O	NLINE PROFIL	.E			
		Α	DMINI	ISTRATC	R INFORM	ЛАТС	)N		
		CUF	RENT IN	IFORMATIC	<u>ON</u>		CHA	ANGE TO	
Administrator Nar	ne	Debra A	Abel Le	eave as	is				
Administrator Phon	ie #s	W:		C:		w:		C:	
Secondary Admin N	ame								
Secondary Admin Pho	one #s	W:		C:		W:		C:	
Acct # and Name			DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS		ACCOUNTS			Add Mobile/RDC	
Select		Select				Select			
	- Carlo			LOAN A	CCOUNTS				
Add Acct 10097277 note 99589 Se			Select			Select			
CREDI			IT CARDS						
Select			Select			Select			
			AD	DITION	<b>AL SERVIC</b>	ES			
BILL PAYMENT (\$	0.50 per	r transaction)						Cancel Service	
Accounts					<u> </u>				
Bill Pay Limit	Defa	efault Select			Reason (Required):				
			AC	KNOWI	EDGEMEN				
By signi	ing belo	w, I hereby a					Online: Business	Agreement.	
, Town of Cottage Grove			MONONA BANK						
			Date:						
Signature: The Hanston			Signature:						
Name & Title: Kris Hampton Chairperson Na			Name & Title: Laura Peterson, Senior Vice President						
BUSINESS SERVICES USE ONLY COMPO			COMPOS	ITE EXISTS:	-	If yes	s, see XAA Pricing Form		
Completed By:	Completed By: Date:			Verified By:			Date:		